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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning. I'd

          3  like to call this meeting of the Subcommittee on

          4  Zoning and Franchises to order.

          5                 I apologize to my colleagues that

          6  were here on time, and to the members of the

          7  community and the City, and the applicants that have

          8  had to wait this long, but it was unforeseeable.

          9                 We have a number of items on the

         10  agenda this morning. I'm going to skip around a bit

         11  and try and move this ahead expeditiously.

         12                 The first item we'll take is Land Use

         13  number 171, which is an application submitted by the

         14  Department of City Planning to apply the

         15  Inclusionary Housing Program to R7-3 districts in

         16  Community District 1, Borough of Brooklyn. It's

         17  N060413 ZRK, and City Planning is here to make the

         18  presentation. It is within Councilman David Yassky's

         19  district. He is in full support of the application.

         20                 MS. MYER: Good morning.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm sorry, before

         22  you start, let me introduce the members of the

         23  Committee that are here. Council Member Seabrook,

         24  Gioia, Dilan, Council Member Katz, Council Member

         25  Felder. I'm also joined by Council Member Lappin.
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          2                 MS. MYER: No problem. Good morning,

          3  Chair Avella, Chair Katz, members of the Committee.

          4  I'm Regina Myer, Director of the Brooklyn Office of

          5  the Department of City Planning, here today to talk

          6  about a proposal to apply the Inclusionary Housing

          7  text amendment to the R7-3 areas of Greenpoint,

          8  Williamsburg.

          9                 As you know, the Greenpoint

         10  Williamsburg rezoning, which the City Council

         11  approved last May, included an Inclusionary Housing

         12  Program for portions of the Greenpoint, Williamsburg

         13  waterfront. This program established a new powerful

         14  incentive to providing affordable housing in

         15  conjunction with new development by granting a

         16  significant floor area bonus if affordable housing

         17  is provided, and by permitting such developments to

         18  utilize public funds for affordable housing.

         19                 The affordable units could be

         20  provided either on or off-site to receive the bonus,

         21  and through either new construction or preservation

         22  programs.

         23                 During the public review process for

         24  the Kedem Development Project, which you will hear

         25  later this morning, and the City Planning Commission
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          2  also had concerns regarding affordable housing

          3  provisions on this site.

          4                 Happily, the applicant did indicate a

          5  willingness to provide 20 percent affordable housing

          6  in conjunction with the development.

          7                 To provide for consistent standards

          8  and the administration of affordable housing in this

          9  project, the Department at that time, and during the

         10  City Planning Commission review, did propose that

         11  the Inclusionary Housing Program regulations apply

         12  to the R7-3 districts in Community Board 1.

         13                 The proposed text amendment that's

         14  before you today would permit the same floor area

         15  bonuses in all R7-3 districts, in Community District

         16  1, as were approved in the Greenpoint Williamsburg

         17  rezoning at a ratio of, bonus ratio of 3.75 going up

         18  to 5 FAR, which is roughly the same percentage, the

         19  33 percent bonus that was approved last year, for

         20  the provision of 20 percent affordable housing.

         21                 In order to achieve this bonus, the

         22  development would need to meet the same

         23  affordability requirements as established in

         24  Greenpoint Williamsburg rezoning, including that the

         25  20 percent of the residential floor area for
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          2  low-income housing should be provided for low-income

          3  households at 80 percent AMI or the combination of

          4  ten percent low-income households and 15 percent at

          5  moderate-income households.

          6                 Affordable units would be developed

          7  and administered pursuant to low-income housing plan

          8  that would have to be approved by the Department of

          9  Housing Preservation and Development and remain

         10  affordable in -- I'm not good at this word, guys --

         11  perpetuity. Okay.

         12                 As you know, other recent rezoning

         13  actions initiated by the Department of City

         14  Planning, including the Park South Slope rezoning,

         15  have included an inclusionary housing bonus to

         16  promote affordable housing.

         17                 Today we are pleased to promote the

         18  inclusion of this program on a private application.

         19  The application of this program will be totally

         20  consistent with all the City Council actions to

         21  date, regarding inclusionary housing, and we think

         22  this is an important first step on using this

         23  program in other locations.

         24                 Any questions?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I was just going

                                                            7

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  to say that.

          3                 Any questions from Committee members?

          4                 Council Member Katz.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Hi, Regina.

          6                 Two very quick questions. First of

          7  all, I heard you, and I apologize, I was a little

          8  distracted, the percentage for AMI for all the

          9  affordable housing units? Can you just go through

         10  them quick?

         11                 MS. MYER: It's the same choice that's

         12  already been approved. Either 20 percent affordable

         13  for 80 percent of AMI, or 25 percent affordable for

         14  ten percent at 80 percent and 15 percent at 125.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: At 125. Okay,

         16  and that's it.

         17                 And the inclusionary zoning is from

         18  which zone to which zone?

         19                 MS. MYER: It would apply in the R7-3

         20  district. The application before you today is

         21  applying for that zone. The FARs that we have

         22  structured would mean that an as of right project

         23  could go forward without affordable housing at 3.75

         24  FAR, and could receive up to a 33 percent bonus of 5

         25  FAR.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

          3  That's all.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

          5  questions from Council members? Thank you.

          6                 Council Member Yassky has joined us.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chair. And I apologize, I was at a hearing next

          9  door.

         10                 Good morning. You've probably covered

         11  the fact that the affordable housing opportunities

         12  here are comparable to what was done on the

         13  waterfront rezoning; is that correct?

         14                 MS. MYER: Absolutely.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. And at

         16  some point I would just like to express my support

         17  for this, whenever is the appropriate time. I

         18  express my support for this action. I believe this

         19  is another important step in bringing housing,

         20  including I think a very substantial component of

         21  affordable housing to the Brooklyn waterfront.

         22                 Thank you, Ms. Myer, and your entire

         23  team. I think the original application did not

         24  include the affordable housing component that's so

         25  critical. I know that Chair Avella and to many of us
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          2  here in the Council, and you do a lot of work to get

          3  that in there. I thank you for it. I don't need to

          4  go on at length, but if the Committee wants to, I

          5  can. But I do support this application, thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          7                 Any other questions, concerns from

          8  Council members?

          9                 With that, thank you. I see no one

         10  signed up to speak on this public hearing item, so I

         11  will close the public hearing.

         12                 You want to speak on this specific

         13  item? Okay. Did you fill out a slip? Okay. You

         14  signed up to speak on the winery issue. That's not

         15  this item yet. Separate action. It can be confusing

         16  at times.

         17                 So, I will close the public hearing

         18  on this particular item, and we will move, I will

         19  skip around again. Council Member Lappin has been

         20  very patient, on the item in her district.

         21                 Then since we're talking about the

         22  winery, we'll go to the winery item.

         23                 This is Land Use Numbers 161 and 162.

         24  The Kedem Winery Application. C020517 ZSK, and

         25  C020518 ZMK.
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          2                 MS. HAIR: Good morning. My name is

          3  Barbara Hair. I'm Counsel with Cozen O'Connor. The

          4  firm represents the applicant and property owner on

          5  two actions before you today, a rezoning and a

          6  special permit for waterfront bulk modifications.

          7  I'm here today with Ken Fisher of Wolf Block Shore

          8  and Solz Cohen, the architect to Henry Stolzman of

          9  Penora Klein Stolzman and Burg, and the affordable

         10  housing consultant, Charles Laven of Forsyth Street

         11  Advisors.

         12                 The existing zoning, this is the

         13  Schaffer site, has been rezoned to R7-3. The

         14  existing zoning for the Kedem site here is M3-1 and

         15  C4-3.

         16                 The proposed zoning would extend the

         17  Schaffer zoning through 7-3 through the Kedem site,

         18  with an overlay of C2-4 along Kent Avenue.

         19                 The special permit for bulk

         20  modifications request five waivers. The first is

         21  very modest. It's three feet. It's for the North

         22  Tower. The walls of the tower facing the shore are

         23  permitted to be no longer than 100 feet. Our walls

         24  are 103 feet.

         25                 The second waiver is for height on
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          2  the south tower, which is 20 feet above the

          3  permitted height. Also the floor plate of the South

          4  Tower exceeds the floor plate of 8,100 square feet.

          5  There is a setback required from the visual corridor

          6  of 15 feet on the tower, a waiver is requested for

          7  that, and at both towers at 150 feet are required to

          8  set back at each story in a tiered fashion like a

          9  wedding cake, and we request a waiver for that, to

         10  permit the towers to go straight up without setback

         11  to their full height.

         12                 And that, in a nutshell is the

         13  special permit bulk modification.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: This application,

         15  as you've probably figured out, lies within Council

         16  Member David Yassky's district. I don't know if you

         17  want to say something at this point, David?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, I

         19  actually thought I was speaking about both

         20  applications together last time.

         21                 Again, I think this is a good step

         22  forward for the waterfront. You know, this is not an

         23  industrial property, it's not going to be. It is not

         24  just its best and appropriate use, but it would be a

         25  terrific use for housing, and the zoning that we're,
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          2  I guess the two actions together, will ensure that

          3  there is a very, very significant affordable housing

          4  component to this.

          5                 I support the application.

          6                 MS. HAIR: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          8  Helen Sears has joined us, and she has a question.

          9  But before I call on her, the community board and

         10  the Borough President disapprove the action. I know

         11  you've taken some steps since then. Would you want

         12  to outline?

         13                 MS. HAIR: One of their concerns was

         14  that while we were offering affordable housing, we

         15  were not within the parameters and guidelines of the

         16  zoning resolution. And that will be corrected under

         17  the proposed text amendment.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         19  Sears. Put your mike on.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Actually, it's

         21  turned into a comment. I just want to congratulate

         22  everybody, because I always get so envious when this

         23  is done and it's just not possible to do it in my

         24  district. At least not at this time.

         25                 So, I congratulate you all, because
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          2  it's a big asset to the City.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

          4  questions, comments, Committee members? Thank you.

          5                 We do have one speaker, Cahterine

          6  Herman.

          7                 MS. HERMAN: Thanks. Hi. Catherine

          8  Herman. I'm from Southside United, Los Sures in

          9  Williamburg, and we've been very involved with the

         10  rezoning efforts.

         11                 I also thought that the two items

         12  were joined, so my comments are as much Kedem as

         13  other future housing. There's another site, R7-3

         14  zone, that could also be affected.

         15                 To just move quickly, because I know

         16  you're busy today, you've had other speakers, and as

         17  you noted, the Community Board voted no, and the

         18  Borough President voted no. The City's action and

         19  expanding the exclusionary housing text to include

         20  this site, took care of a lot of the issues, but let

         21  me just point out a couple crucial ones that weren't

         22  taken care of in that action. And these were all

         23  raised in the last rezoning. One was taken care of

         24  in the last rezoning, which was that the affordable

         25  housing would probably be built on-site, due to the
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          2  fact that the 421-A program was not as of right in

          3  this site. The 421-A program, unless something has

          4  changed, would still be as of right to this

          5  developer, meaning he doesn't have the incentive to

          6  build the housing on-site. That was really important

          7  to us before and for the same reasons it's still

          8  really important for us. Otherwise, he could build

          9  whatever it's going to be, 100, 125, maybe 90, I'm

         10  sorry, 90 affordable units, anywhere else in

         11  Community Board 1, which certainly destroys a lot of

         12  what we would achieve by the inclusionary.

         13                 Another issue we have is the same

         14  issue we had last time. This is a 20 percent

         15  affordable, or 25 percent affordable, if you have

         16  the high-income limits. But we talked about 40

         17  percent affordable, everybody says you'll never get

         18  it. Maybe that's true, but it's unfortunate.

         19                 The reason we talked about 40 percent

         20  affordable is that right now the balance is tipped

         21  so much so that the attraction to the developers and

         22  the reason the program was crafted this way, so it

         23  would be attracted to the developers, was that they

         24  get a 33 percent bonus, as Regina Myers said, they

         25  only have to do a 20 percent affordable. So, that
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          2  difference between the bonus they get and the amount

          3  of affordable housing they have to build is more

          4  market rate housing.

          5                 The City wants market rate housing

          6  because the City is growing. We appreciate that. We

          7  have to compete with the suburbs in the surrounding

          8  area. Williamsburg, Greenpoint was a great place to

          9  put it for the City. It was not a great place to put

         10  it for the people in Greenpoint, Williamsburg.

         11                 The south side, where this project is

         12  going to be located, the median income is probably

         13  less than 20,000 a year. Everybody knows something

         14  about the southside.

         15                 Greenpoint Williamsburg Community

         16  Board 1, as a whole median income is probably around

         17  27,000. Maybe it's changed slightly with the new

         18  additions to the neighborhood. So, that gap is

         19  really severe. And when you have the program set up

         20  as it is now, where you're trying to -- the City is

         21  saying we have to leverage, we don't have support

         22  from the federal government, we have to leverage by

         23  allowing the developers, in fact, encouraging them

         24  to build much more market rate housing.

         25                 The more market rate housing, the
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          2  more housing being built doesn't reflect the

          3  community it's coming into, the more destabilizing

          4  it is.

          5                 Does that matter to the City as a

          6  whole? Maybe it doesn't, but to the people there it

          7  does.

          8                 Everybody saw the fire, you couldn't

          9  miss it, a month ago. That was just about the

         10  one-year anniversary of the rezoning. We don't know

         11  exactly what happened there, but I think a lot of

         12  people think that was fueled by this incredible

         13  exponential increase in property values.

         14                 What brings the exponential increase

         15  in property values is the additional market rate

         16  housing. If you put a Mitchell-Lama level housing

         17  there, or other affordable housing, obviously it

         18  doesn't have that same impact.

         19                 There's another project that may be

         20  coming before this public body to take a site upland

         21  in Williamsburg at North Third and North Fourth, the

         22  old S&S corrugated site, and to build a very, very

         23  dense development there. On land it was just

         24  downzoned. I only bring that up here because the

         25  developers when we met with them said the reason
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          2  they had to build at such a high density was because

          3  they paid so much for the land. They paid so much

          4  for the land because it keeps fueling this

          5  escalation in price.

          6                 And what happens is what our

          7  organization, other people deal with, is a lot of

          8  displacement, a lot of landlords trying to get

          9  tenants out, a lot of elderly people being

         10  displaced, a lot of people from the neighborhood

         11  that thought they could buy a home, never going to

         12  be able to buy a home.

         13                 So, I'll leave you with that. We're

         14  still opposed for the reason that we need either the

         15  public sector or this program to require more

         16  affordable housing on site.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         18                 MS. HERMAN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Councilman Yassky

         20  has a question.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Just very

         22  quickly. And Cathy, nobody I think has done more to

         23  insure that there will be new affordable housing in

         24  Greenpoint Williamsburg than yourself.

         25                 I thank you for that.
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          2                 I agree with your diagnosis 100

          3  percent, that there is neighborhood change, there is

          4  skyrocketing real estate prices that leads

          5  absolutely to displacement.

          6                 That's I know from the people calling

          7  my office every day, you know from the people coming

          8  to you and Los Sures for help. But then given that

          9  diagnosis, I'm not sure I agree with your -- I don't

         10  agree, and I'm not sure I understand why you take

         11  the position you do on this.

         12                 To me, if this site stays the way it

         13  is, that neighborhood change continues, the

         14  displacement continues. Not doing anything on this

         15  site would not affect that at all.

         16                 The answer is not to say a little

         17  less market rate housing as opposed to -- you know,

         18  instead of to keep the market rate housing, new

         19  market housing where it is and where it's going to

         20  be today, as opposed to a small increment more, the

         21  answer is more affordable. And you and I have had

         22  this discussion. So, I just felt, I want to make

         23  that point here publicly, the answer is, in my view,

         24  as much affordable as you can, and when you have an

         25  opportunity to leverage, I would say, developers'
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          2  desire to build market rate into a requirement that

          3  they do affordable is something we should jump at.

          4  It's kind of a question -- you know, there's no real

          5  question. Please go head.

          6                 Mr. Chair, I appreciate the

          7  indulgence. That's my only comment.

          8                 MS. HERMAN: Okay, you probably don't

          9  want to have a huge dialogue here, but we'll

         10  continue it, because we're going to be meeting with

         11  you on this.

         12                 I think part of it is the proportion,

         13  and that's why we say 40 percent. We always said 40

         14  percent. If you think about it, for every affordable

         15  housing that's built here, say that's even 900, say

         16  it's even 1,000 square feet a unit, the developer

         17  will build one and a half condominiums. So, while

         18  we're getting the 20 percent affordable, and that's

         19  lauded, that in this market, what would each one of

         20  those extra condominiums go for? A million, million

         21  and a half. Because the bonus that this body will

         22  grant this site is going to all be the more

         23  desirable, give the more desirable square footage.

         24                 So, when someone says to me, we can't

         25  ask the developers to do anymore, I say well this is
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          2  your choice, because no one knows what the market is

          3  going to do.

          4                 Schaffer, you know, worked 40 percent

          5  different site, obviously, but that worked when the

          6  market was going to be units at 300,000. The units

          7  sold for over 2 million, some of them.

          8                 So, I think that it's possible. Once

          9  you said we really want this site developed because

         10  it's so important to us, the developer says, okay,

         11  well this is what I need because you want me to

         12  develop it.

         13                 The community says we don't need to

         14  have this developed, if it's something that's going

         15  to hurt us. That's where we differ.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         17                 MS. HERMAN: Thanks a lot.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: There's no one

         19  else signed up to speak on this item, I'll close the

         20  public hearing on this matter. And we will move to

         21  Land Use No. 169 and 170, regarding the educational

         22  construction fund. There are two actions, N060254

         23  ZRY. Application submitted by the educational

         24  construction fund, and 1765 First Associates, for an

         25  amendment of the zoning resolution concerning
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          2  Section 74-75 of the Educational Construction Fund

          3  Project. That's a Citywide change. And then the

          4  accompanying action is C060255 ZSM, application

          5  again submitted by the Construction Fund, and 765

          6  First Associates, for the granting of a special

          7  permit to permit utilization of air rights over a

          8  school.

          9                 Good morning.

         10                 MR. SMARR: I'm sorry, it was on and I

         11  turned it off.

         12                 Good morning, Chair Avella, Chair

         13  Katz, all members of the Subcommittee. I'm pleased

         14  to be here this morning on behalf 1765 First Avenue,

         15  Manhattan. This is a public/private partnership of

         16  Dematis Matone (phonetic) and the New York City

         17  Educational Construction Fund.

         18                 I'm also joined by Jerry Candreva,

         19  Developer's counsel, and Bob Cook, my counsel,

         20  counsel to the Educational Construction Fund.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Staff advises me,

         22  I was distracted for a second, you didn't give your

         23  name.

         24                 MR. SMARR: Yes, I was just about to.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.
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          2                 MR. SMARR: So, I'm Jamie Smarr, and

          3  I'm Executive Director of the New York City

          4  Educational Construction Fund. This is a position I

          5  have held for the past four years.

          6                 1765 First Avenue, represents a

          7  private investment and a public good in the form of

          8  a new 81,000 square foot intermediate school

          9  building on a City-owned property, which is the

         10  former PS 151, which was closed in the Year 2000.

         11                 In exchange for this investment, the

         12  developer will be permitted to build an apartment

         13  tower above the new school building, I'm pleased to

         14  report that this project has a full support for

         15  Manhattan Community Board 8. It was also supported

         16  by the Manhattan Borough President Scott Stringer,

         17  and the City Planning Commission.

         18                 ECF projects, all 15 of them, really

         19  represent opportunities to capture the intrinsic

         20  economic value that exists on some City-owned

         21  properties, that can produce new schools at no cost

         22  to the City of New York.

         23                 ECF has been largely dormant since

         24  the 1970s when it built more than 17,000 new school

         25  seats, really in Manhattan, in Brooklyn, in the
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          2  Bronx and Queens. I'm pleased to report that the

          3  Fund is now back on its feet again and resuming its

          4  role as another resource to deliver new schools for

          5  New York City.

          6                 So, again, I want to stress that this

          7  is a way to deliver additional school seat capacity

          8  for New York City without burdening the City's

          9  capital budget.

         10                 My counsel here is going to further

         11  explain to you the specific requests that we're

         12  making in the two ULURP applications.

         13                 Bob.

         14                 MR. COOK: It is counter-intuitive.

         15  I'm Robert -- Chair Avella, Chair Katz, Committee

         16  members, I'm Robert Cook of the law firm of Anderson

         17  Kill & Olick.  We're counsel to the ECF. I'm here to

         18  describe the actions requested here with us and not

         19  planning to speak but available to answer questions,

         20  regarding the non-school portion of the project as

         21  Jerry Candreva of Krame Levin, counsel to the

         22  developer.

         23                 This project would be developed under

         24  the Fund's auspices on an L-shaped site on the east

         25  side of First Avenue, between 91st and 92nd Streets.
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          2                 The avenue frontage is zoned C2-8,

          3  the midlock R8-B. The residential tower, with a

          4  small amount of retail space would be developed on

          5  the avenue frontage, and the school would be

          6  developed on the interior portion of the lot, mostly

          7  in the R8-B district.

          8                 There are two applications before the

          9  Council. One is an application for a special permit

         10  pursuant to 74-75 of the zoning resolution, a

         11  provision enacted for the express purpose of

         12  addressing zoning issues arising in connection with

         13  ECF projects, and the others for an amendment to

         14  that provision.

         15                 Special permit allows the granting of

         16  waivers of various zoning requirements for combined

         17  occupancy structure, consisting of a school and a

         18  non-school portion, developed under sponsorship of

         19  the fund.

         20                 Here the waivers apply only to the

         21  school portion of the combined occupancy structure.

         22  They're necessitated by the need to accommodate on a

         23  small lot a building that can function effectively

         24  as a school. The application requests a waiver of

         25  required rear yard equivalent of height, of height
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          2  and set-back requirements on 92nd Street, and of a

          3  rear-yard setback.

          4                 In addition, the application for the

          5  special permit includes a request that properties

          6  not owned by the fund be included as part of a

          7  zoning lot, and that unused floor area in the R8-B

          8  district be transferred across the zoning district

          9  boundary into the C2-8 zoning district for

         10  incorporation in the non-school building.

         11                 The amendments to section 74-75 are

         12  two-fold: To permit the waiver of rear-yard

         13  requirements, and to allow lots not owned by the

         14  fund to be included in the zoning lot. The purpose

         15  of transferring development rights to the site.

         16                 Both changes are needed in connection

         17  with the proposed development, but will also be

         18  useful for future projects that make use of the

         19  special permit.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The actually

         22  school site lies within Council Member Lappin's

         23  district. I know that she has a couple of questions

         24  of comments.

         25                 Council Member Lappin.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: I do. Thank

          3  you, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 What is the cost of the middle

          5  school?

          6                 MR. SMARR: We estimate it will be

          7  approximately $40 million investment.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, it's a $40

          9  million benefit to the community?

         10                 MR. SMARR: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Where are the

         12  entrances for the housing, and where will the

         13  entrances be for the school?

         14                 MR. SMARR: Well, the scheme Z1 that

         15  is submitted as part of the ULURP application has

         16  the entrance of a school on 91st Street, and the

         17  entrance to the tower on First Avenue.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And where will

         19  deliveries be made for both or either? I mean, the

         20  school, I would anticipate, would have deliveries of

         21  food and other things. So, where?

         22                 MR. SMARR: Well, the school service

         23  entrance is on 92nd Street, because the school does

         24  go through the block.

         25                 The freight entrance -- yes, I
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          2  imagine the apartment tower will take its service

          3  entrance on 91st Street.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, the kids

          5  will enter on 91st but deliveries will be made on

          6  92nd?

          7                 MR. SMARR: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Is there a

          9  play area? I know I just -- where is the play area?

         10                 MR. SMARR: The school's play yard is

         11  accessible really from 92nd Street, the stairway,

         12  but also from the main building by walking through

         13  the building and then going out into its court yard.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: It's sort of

         15  in the interior, as I recall, right?

         16                 MR. SMARR: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And the

         18  formula for admittance will remain exactly the same

         19  for East Side Middle?

         20                 MR. SMARR: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Is that

         22  separate?

         23                 MR. SMARR: That's a conversation we

         24  have to have with Region 9. But my understanding is

         25  there's no plans to change the school's admission
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          2  policy.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: That's my

          4  understanding, too. So, as discussions continue, I

          5  just wanted to hear that from you on the record. I

          6  know there will be about 200 more seats.

          7                 MR. SMARR: Right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Which is a

          9  fantastic thing for the community.

         10                 And you're still planning to open the

         11  school in 2008?

         12                 MR. SMARR: That's still our plan.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay.

         14                 Are there any penalties if the school

         15  does not open in 2008?

         16                 MR. SMARR: Not that I'm aware of. But

         17  that's really our partnership with developers, to

         18  make sure that we can keep to the project timeline

         19  that we have established, and one of the things I'm

         20  particularly happy about is, at least the Land Use

         21  portion of that time line has gone favorably, so in

         22  that respect we're a little ahead of schedule.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Well, we have

         24  tried to help move that along, and I would say just

         25  for my colleagues and for the Chair, I do think it
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          2  is a good project for the community, I think to have

          3  a brand new state-of-the-art East Side Middle School

          4  and that has 200 more seats is a very positive

          5  thing, and we're also freeing up seats in the

          6  elementary school that the middle school is now

          7  housed in.

          8                 But once, as this moves forward, this

          9  is just, Jamie, you and I will be talking

         10  frequently, it's important to me and it's important

         11  to the community that this school does open in 2008,

         12  and we will be talking frequently about making that

         13  happen. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         15  Council member.

         16                 Council Member Seabrook.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes, just a

         18  couple of questions in reference to the component

         19  that you're providing the school.

         20                 What is the amount of affordable

         21  housing that's going to be provided, if any, in this

         22  development that you're doing? What type of housing?

         23                 MR. SMARR: Council member, the

         24  proposal is to generate affordable housing through

         25  the City's 421-A tax exemption program. We have
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          2  contracted with a third party to develop that

          3  low-income housing. We have also contracted with a

          4  third party to develop low-income housing, pursuant

          5  to the City's Inclusionary Housing Program.

          6                 So, there are two components by which

          7  this project will generate low-income housing off

          8  site.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

         10  very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We've also been

         12  joined during our discussion by Council Member

         13  Robert Jackson.

         14                 Are there any other questions?

         15                 Sure, Council Member Lappin.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: One more

         17  question, because I was asked about this at a PTA

         18  recently and I want to make sure I'm describing it

         19  right.

         20                 The City is leasing the land for the

         21  apartments, correct? So, we're not giving up the

         22  ownership. So, they're not co-ops, what are they

         23  exactly?

         24                 MR. SMARR: Well, it is possible to do

         25  a co-op on a leasehold. So, as I understand it, what
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          2  we're planning to do is a condo. And it is done

          3  pursuant to a long-term lease. It's a 75-year lease

          4  of the property, or the air rights therein, but the

          5  City never actually transfers the ownership to the

          6  private developer.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay, thank

          8  you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         10  questions, comments?

         11                 Thank you, gentlemen.

         12                 I see no one signed up to speak on

         13  this item; is that correct? I will therefore close

         14  the public hearing on this matter.

         15                 Land Use No. 163. The Pasta Bar.

         16  20065317 TCM. An application by the Pasta Bar, LLC

         17  to establish and maintain and operate an unenclosed

         18  sidewalk cafe, located at 127 Avenue C has been laid

         19  over.

         20                 The last item is Land Use No. 156.

         21  20065318 TCK. Application by Leahlala, also known as

         22  Abilene's, to establish, maintain and operate an

         23  unenclosed sidewalk cafe located at 442 Court

         24  Street.

         25                 This application lies within Council
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          2  Member DeBlasio's district. And this has been

          3  perfect timing today, and Councilman DeBlasio has

          4  just walked in.

          5                 MR. KELLY: Good morning, Chairpersons

          6  Avella and Katz, and members of the Committee.

          7                 My name is Michael Kelly, and I'm

          8  representing Leahlala LLC. Sitting next to me is

          9  Leah Allen, one of the owners.

         10                 The LLC is applying for a sidewalk

         11  cafe license at 442 Court Street in Brooklyn, with

         12  eight tables and 16 seats. The length of our

         13  premises is 57 and a half feet. We are proposing to

         14  use 18 feet one inch of the allowable area. The cafe

         15  would begin approximately 29 feet from Third Place.

         16                 The width of the sidewalk cafe is 18

         17  feet two inches. We will be using seven feet, and

         18  leaving 11 feet two inches for pedestrian walkway.

         19                 We have placed a cafe by our side

         20  door to keep it away from Third Place, which is a

         21  residential block.

         22                 There has been community opposition,

         23  and the community board voted against us, and we are

         24  more than willing to address any of the community

         25  board or Committee's concerns.
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          2                 We have had a noise complaint in the

          3  past, and a complaint about smoking on a residential

          4  staircase when we first opened, and we believe we

          5  cured that situation immediately.

          6                 Leah has put a bench out the door to

          7  smokers, away from Third Place, so as not to

          8  interfere with the residents on that block. She also

          9  lives directly across the street.

         10                 Her home and cell phone numbers are

         11  available at the establishment if anyone has a

         12  complaint. She lives in the neighborhood and she's

         13  concerned about her community and believes everyone

         14  has a right to live peacefully.

         15                 We handed in a petition at the

         16  community board with approximately 180 persons who

         17  are in favor of our cafe and we presented the

         18  Council with another petition. We do have a lot of

         19  support from our neighbors and customers, but we

         20  also understand the concerns from the people who

         21  oppose our application, especially concerning noise.

         22                 If the cafe became too noisy or

         23  disturbing to our neighbors, we would shut it down

         24  ourselves. We also understand if it was approved,

         25  revocable consent agreement can be nullified.
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          2                 The community board has a concern

          3  about us having a full menu. Right now we have a

          4  limited menu of sandwiches. We have been searching

          5  for someone to rent our kitchen, to run our food

          6  operation, but have not found anyone yet.

          7                 The Community Board also wanted us to

          8  close the cafe early, and we're more than willing to

          9  do that, closing at 11:00 during the week and 11:30

         10  on the weekends.

         11                 And we would also agree to not open

         12  the cafe until the kitchen is in full operation, and

         13  have that written into the revocable consent

         14  agreement. This was the main sticking point at the

         15  community board, that there was no kitchen in

         16  operation.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         19  DeBlasio, I believe it would probably be appropriate

         20  for you to comment at this point.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Chairman, I

         22  just want to say I appreciate the fact that the

         23  folks are here communicating. I appreciate we have

         24  had some dialogue with the community.

         25                 However, as I think we have
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          2  experienced in many, many neighborhoods, there is a

          3  growing problem with outdoor areas of

          4  establishments, and in this case our Community

          5  Board, which I think has been well known for being

          6  fairminded and very meticulous in its research, has

          7  come back with a negative determination, and I think

          8  that is not necessarily, you know, any attempt to

          9  personally characterize these individuals or this

         10  establishment, but also a concern that we have a

         11  growing problem in our neighborhood that once a

         12  permit is granted, there is much less control of a

         13  situation by definition, and there is not a lot of

         14  history here to know that the situation will not end

         15  up being, as we've had in so many other places, a

         16  noise problem, a smoking problem, a congestion

         17  problem. And it's just been a discomfort with moving

         18  this forward.

         19                 So, I certainly do want to ask the

         20  Committee, with all due respect to the applicants,

         21  to vote this down.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Questions,

         23  comments from Committee members?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can I make a

         25  comment?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can I ask the

          4  Councilman, I don't know how this works

          5  institutionally. Is this the only sidewalk cafe on

          6  the block, if it was approved?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: I'm sorry, I

          8  just need a clarification. It's not the only one

          9  that exists. There is one next door for a bakery,

         10  but this would be the only one that would exist at

         11  night, and that's where the concern is.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right.

         13  Thanks.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         15  Jackson.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: My question

         17  is, where is the Community Board? The Community

         18  Board is a local government structure of the

         19  community, and community board members, as you know,

         20  Mr. Chair, are members who live in the community,

         21  who own businesses in the community, or work in the

         22  community; where is the Community Board's position

         23  on this, and what position did it take, and why did

         24  it take that position? Bill, do you know?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Well, I
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          2  don't know if you got a copy of their letter here,

          3  but it does define their position, and you can see

          4  their position was pretty overwhelming in terms of

          5  the opposition. Combination of a substantial

          6  opposition they heard from local residents. And I do

          7  appreciate that the applicants got signatures on

          8  their behalf as well, but I think in this instance

          9  there is not always an equivalence. If there is a

         10  substantial amount of opposition, and a substantial

         11  amount of support, that doesn't equal out.

         12                 I think we have always tended to

         13  respect the opposition because we are changing the

         14  quality of life in the neighborhood by the action.

         15  So, I think the opposition weighs more heavily.

         16                 Also, as you see in the letter, a

         17  concern that it is a bar. And, again, no reflection

         18  on the individuals here, but I think there's always

         19  a concern that a bar ends up having a particular

         20  atmosphere and particular outcomes, as has been on

         21  this, on Court Street and parallel Smith Street, a

         22  huge amount of number of problems with smoking,

         23  congestion, late night noise. And so I think it's

         24  that combination of factors that led the Community

         25  Board to feel uncomfortable here.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Yes, may I

          3  continue, sir?

          4                 I'm reading this letter, it's from

          5  Community Board 6, and it says that the

          6  establishment is a bar without a kitchen. It's not a

          7  cafe then, is that correct? Or unless you call it a

          8  liquid cafe? I'm just asking a question seriously.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I think that's a

         10  good question. I have my own answer to that, but

         11  I'll let the applicant answer that too.

         12                 MR. KELLY: We have a kitchen on the

         13  premises that's not in operation yet. We've been

         14  looking for someone to basically rent a kitchen,

         15  come in on their own and own the food part of our

         16  bar business, so we say. We will also agree not to

         17  open the cafe and have it written into the revocable

         18  consent that we wouldn't operate the cafe or get the

         19  licensed issued to us until that kitchen is open and

         20  we can have a member of the community board come

         21  down and see that we would be serving food.

         22                 At the Community Board's committee

         23  hearing the painstaking point was that we did not

         24  have a cafe, an operating kitchen.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Yes. I read
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          2  in here, it said that should this applicant decide

          3  to install a kitchen and be serving food, we would

          4  invite them to return to us in the future. In

          5  essence, they did not close the door and lock it,

          6  but they closed it and said the door will be

          7  reopened to visit your situation again.

          8                 MR. KELLY: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So, I assume

         10  that you plan on taking them up on that offer?

         11                 MR. KELLY: Yes. We were actually

         12  looking for someone before we even applied for a

         13  sidewalk cafe to open a kitchen. We had two deals

         14  that fell through.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: How long has

         16  this -- is it a bar right now; is that correct?

         17                 MR. KELLY: Yes, it is a bar right

         18  now.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: How long has

         20  it been opened?

         21                 MS. ALLEN: Since January 13th.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Of this year.

         23  It's relatively brand new.

         24                 MS. ALLEN: And I had someone when we

         25  applied for the permit, we did have someone who was
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          2  planning on taking over the kitchen, it fell through

          3  for personal reasons. So, the intent was for it to

          4  be up and running, you know, by the time we came in

          5  front of the community board and then it fell

          6  through.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And your

          8  permit or license that you're asking for is,

          9  assuming that it was approved, assuming that it was

         10  approved, would allow your establishment to have an

         11  outdoor cafe up until what time?

         12                 MR. KELLY: 11:00 p.m. during the

         13  week, and 11:30 on the weekend. Legally you're

         14  allowed to keep it open til midnight during the week

         15  and 1:00 a.m. on the weekends, but considering the

         16  fact that there are residents around, we'd close it

         17  earlier.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.

         19                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And let me just

         21  also comment based upon your question. I mean, I

         22  found the Community Board's argument interesting.

         23  Because if, in effect, they're applying for a cafe

         24  license, and there's no food, then why are they

         25  applying for that type of license. I think it's an
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          2  interesting issue that probably you'll have to look

          3  a little bit further into.

          4                 I actually asked staff to see if

          5  there were situations where we had approved

          6  applications in the past like this, and what staff

          7  has told me is there may have been one, but we're

          8  not even sure about that at this point.

          9                 Council Member Katz.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: You serve

         11  sandwiches now?

         12                 MR. KELLY: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I guess really,

         14  just for the record, because I chair the full

         15  Committee, and I just want to sort of put on the

         16  record, I honestly don't have a problem with an

         17  outdoor sidewalk cafe not serving food. I think we

         18  do that with Starbucks, we do it at Dunkin Donuts,

         19  and I think that just because it's a bar, that

         20  doesn't really concern me.

         21                 I mean, on Austin Street we have a

         22  lot of businesses who have outdoor cafes, really by

         23  10:00 at night, it's pretty much a bar outside. But

         24  my issue truly is that I have always said that

         25  sidewalk cafes are the most local issue you possibly
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          2  can get.  In anything we do with Land Use, you can't

          3  get anything more local. It's not economic

          4  development, quite honestly. I mean, it would be

          5  nice to make a little extra, but it's not really

          6  Citywide economic development issue. It's not, you

          7  know, one of those things that's going to have

          8  ramifications for generations to come. It's truly

          9  one of the most local issues.

         10                 And I'm looking at the picture and it

         11  is a very local street. But I really mostly want it

         12  on the record, just my opinion, on the issue of food

         13  and the kitchen for future reference.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I see another

         15  hand up. Before I call on Council Member Sears, I

         16  certainly agree with the comments of Council Member

         17  Katz. Certainly sidewalk cafes are the most local

         18  issue. We look to the community board for

         19  recommendations, we look to the Council Member for

         20  recommendations, and I certainly lean very heavily

         21  in that respect in this case.

         22                 Just so Council Member DeBlasio

         23  knows, before the meeting started, I suggested,

         24  given the fact that, and this goes back to Council

         25  Member Jackson's points too, that since they're
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          2  looking for somebody to operate the kitchen, and

          3  that was the community board's main objection, why

          4  not voluntarily withdraw the application at this

          5  point? The applicant can get some sort of refund.

          6  We're not exactly sure how much that is. As opposed

          7  to risking a possible no vote and then having to go

          8  through this whole process again.

          9                 I offered that. They want to go

         10  ahead. But I just want to go on the record, that I

         11  made that suggestion.

         12                 Council Member Sears.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Your suggestion

         14  is an agreeable one?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Not to them.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Not to them.

         17                 I have to echo the comments of

         18  Councilwoman Katz. I have no problem with cafes

         19  serving only -- and not being a restaurant, I see

         20  them all over Astoria, I see them throughout the

         21  City.

         22                 I also agree that it's a very local

         23  issue, inasmuch as that I may agree with the fact

         24  that you are not a restaurant is perfectly fine,

         25  it's very local, and it's very rare on such a local
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          2  issue when the Councilman feels that adamant that we

          3  should vote against it. Perhaps you might want to

          4  consider the Chair's recommendation, so there can be

          5  more worked out on this.

          6                 MR. KELLY: We just thought we'd go

          7  ahead. The amount of refund that you would get would

          8  be the same amount whether we withdrew it or not.

          9  The Consumer Affairs will give you back the $1,500

         10  security fee, and the 510 license fee and keep the

         11  $750.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         13  Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         15  questions or comments?

         16                 Simcha. Council Member Felder.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: It's obviously

         18  up to you but I think that you may want to consider

         19  that even if financially you're not making anything

         20  by declining it, but it seems pretty clear to me

         21  that you're going to lose this vote. And I think the

         22  Community Board, as well as the Chair and the

         23  Council member for my district, instead of having to

         24  fight with an establishment that they think may be

         25  worthwhile, at the end there are some adjustments to
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          2  the permit, no one is going to blackmail you into

          3  withdrawing.

          4                 I'm just making a suggestion as your

          5  unpaid advisor, that this is, you know, there is

          6  something to be lost. This is not a moral or ethical

          7  issue. The issue is that I think by your clients

          8  shaking their heads during some of the criticism,

          9  you know, I think that both of you realize and admit

         10  there are some problems.

         11                 So, I'm trying to figure out why in

         12  the world, you know, and I'm not asking you the

         13  question, I'm just saying I don't understand why in

         14  the world you want to go through it, lose it and

         15  then have to come back and say, despite the fact

         16  that we insisted and lost, now we're coming back for

         17  a new permit, instead of saying, you know what? We

         18  know that the real issues here were the fact that we

         19  weren't serving food, it's three months later, three

         20  months from now we're going to have, God willing,

         21  somebody who serves food, but forget the whole

         22  thing. And again, it's up to you. I just don't

         23  understand. You know, I don't understand it. And you

         24  don't have to answer.

         25                 MS. ALLEN: Hi. Well, the thing is the
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          2  deal that I'm setting up right now is so close to

          3  being complete for having -- you know, it's a little

          4  delicate, but really within a week, or a little bit

          5  more, a little bit less, could be done and food

          6  could be there within such a short time. And I guess

          7  that's why I was, because I have to go through this

          8  all again and I'm going to lose a relatively large

          9  amount of money anyway. And as Mike Kelly said, I'm

         10  willing to, you know, have it all based on once the

         11  kitchen is open, and someone could come down and

         12  make sure that's what we're doing, and that there

         13  isn't, you know, that I didn't just pull this whole

         14  thing just to get you to give me the permit. You can

         15  see for yourselves, and then once you agree that it

         16  is all up and running properly, as I said, then the

         17  permit could be issued that way. It's really that

         18  I'm so close to having it fully completed. I don't

         19  know what the right thing to do is, and I guess I'm

         20  a little nervous. This has been a long process. I

         21  don't know.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Well, first of

         23  all, I want to say that I'm happy your nervous,

         24  because it shows that you're normal. I mean, why

         25  wouldn't you be nervous, you invested money and you
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          2  have a vote coming down in the future. So, if you

          3  weren't nervous, then you'd be a robot. So, that's

          4  good, I mean that's good that you're nervous. And

          5  about being close, not close, there is no right or

          6  wrong thing. I don't think -- this is not, you know,

          7  one of the Ten Commandments, to my knowledge. There

          8  is no right or wrong thing. I'm just suggesting -- I

          9  should shut up?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Yes.

         11                 Now, I hate to interrupt, but we've

         12  had some conversations here, and based upon what you

         13  just said, we were going by that you're making a

         14  commitment in effect that you're in the process of

         15  trying to get somebody to operate the kitchen, we

         16  will give you some more time on this. You say it's

         17  imminent. But there is a time frame by which we have

         18  to vote this application out or we lose our right to

         19  comment.

         20                 We can lay this over to the 13th of

         21  June. But that's the Stated Meeting of the Council,

         22  which means that day my Committee would have to

         23  vote, the Land Use Committee would have to vote, and

         24  the recommendation would go immediately to the

         25  Council later on that day.
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          2                 MS. ALLEN: Okay.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: So, in

          4  conjunction with Council Member DeBlasio and Council

          5  Member Katz, we think this is a good way to go, it

          6  will give you two more weeks to come up with

          7  something that can resolve everybody's concern.

          8                 MS. ALLEN: Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         10  DeBlasio.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: I want to

         12  just say at the outset, I want to thank Chair

         13  Avella, Chair Katz and the Land Use staff for

         14  helping us think creatively about this, and I want

         15  to thank all my colleagues for their support or

         16  statement.

         17                 I certainly would like to see if we

         18  could find common ground. I imagine the community

         19  board would as well, especially if the situation may

         20  be changing.

         21                 So, I would very strongly endorse,

         22  you know, an intermediary period to see if we can do

         23  that.

         24                 I will just say for the record, if we

         25  can't, I will come back and urge my colleagues to
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          2  vote no.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And if it can't

          4  be arranged, I think the sense I get from the

          5  Committee is there will be a no vote. So that puts

          6  more impetus on you to actually resolve this

          7  situation.

          8                 This item will be laid over til June

          9  13th.

         10                 MR. KELLY: Okay, thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Is there anybody

         12  signed up to speak on this item?

         13                 MS. ALLEN: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We're going to

         15  close the public hearing on this item today.

         16                 MS. LAVIGNE: Hi. I'm Sarah Lavigne.

         17  Councilman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You could make

         19  this quick, obviously.

         20                 MS. LAVIGNE: Yes, I'm going to be

         21  quick.  I'm just the neighbor. I live upstairs from

         22  Abilene and I'm in full support of having a sidewalk

         23  cafe. As it is people stand out there all the time,

         24  so it wouldn't be much different from them standing

         25  there and sitting at tables. So, I highly recommend
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          2  you vote in favor of the cafe. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          4  Jackson wants to delay the meeting further.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You're saying

          6  people stand out there all the time. Are people

          7  standing out there 11:00, 11:30 at night?

          8                 MS. LAVIGNE: People are usually

          9  lingering until around midnight, and then it --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Really?

         11  They're standing around there chatting and talking

         12  and what have you and so forth?

         13                 MS. LAVIGNE: It's just I think a lot

         14  of the smokers are outside?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You mean the

         16  people that patron the bar you mean?

         17                 MS. LAVIGNE: Mm-hmm.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay. But if

         19  the bar was not there, would they be standing there?

         20                 MS. LAVIGNE: No.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: No. Oh, okay.

         22  Okay, thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         24                 Seeing no other speakers on this

         25  item, the public hearing on the item is closed, but
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          2  the item will be laid over til June 13th.

          3                 The Chair is going to ask counsel to

          4  call the vote. The Chair recommends approval on all

          5  items, except for Land Use No. 156, which as I just

          6  mentioned will be laid over til June 13th, and Land

          7  Use No. 163, Pasta Bar, which has been laid over

          8  indefinitely.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Avella.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         12  Dilan.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: I want to pass

         14  for now.

         15                 COUNSEL TO CLERK: Council Member

         16  Felder.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         19  Gioia.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: I vote yes.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         22  Jackson.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Yes on all

         24  items.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member
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          2  Katz.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye on all.

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          5  Seabrook.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye on all.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          8  Sears.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         11  Dilan.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye on all.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of

         14  eight in the affirmative, none in the negative, and

         15  no abstentions, the aforementioned items are

         16  approved and referred to the full Committee.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         18  everyone. This meeting of the Subcommittee on Zoning

         19  and Franchises is adjourned -- is recessed until

         20  June 13th.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 11:11 a.m.)

         22

         23

         24

         25
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